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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of JSC Silk Road Bank
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of JSC Silk Road Bank ithe “Bank"}, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December, 2018 the statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the
year lhen ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Bank as at 31 December, 2018, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountanis' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the
Republic of Georgia, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responstbilities in accordance
with these requiremenis and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Statement on Management Report

Management is responsible for the Management Report, which does not include the
financial statements and our auditors' report. The Management Report s expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report

QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Management Report and we will
nol express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
Management Report when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
Maragement Report is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit. or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

When we read the Management Report, we conclude whether the other information:

— s consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatement;
— contains all information that i required by and is compliant wilh the Law of Georgia an
Accounting, Reporting and Auditing
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Other Matter

The financial statements of the Bank as at and for the year ended 31 December 2017 were
audited by other auditors who expressed an unmaodified opinion on those statements on
14 May 2018

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal contral as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financlal statements that are free from
malerial misstatement, whather due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial siatements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
Interds to liguidate the Bank or to cease operalions, or has no realistic alternative but (o
do so

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with |SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements,

As part of an audil in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive o
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of nat detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion. forgery,
intentional amissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.,

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design aud
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, bul nol for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control

— Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management

— Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concemn basis of
accounting and, basec on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exisis redated fo events or conditions thal may cast significant doubt on the Bank's
ability to continue 2= a gaing concern If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required D draw attention in our auditors’ repor to the related disclosures in
the financial sistements or.  such disclosures are inadequate, 1o maodify our opinion
Our conclusions =re besed on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
SudEoTs repdt However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to
CONtNue 235 3 OING CONoaT
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— Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the pianned scope and timing of the audit and significant acdit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during cur audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' repert is;

Ka en‘"Safaryan

15 May 2018



JSEC Silk Road Bunk
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehenvive mcame for the vear 2008

2018 2007
Notes  GEL'000  GEL'000
Interest incomme caleulsted using the effective interest method i 4,237 2510
Interest cxperise & [38T) (631}
Net interest income 650 2179
Fee and commission meome T45 40
Fee and commission expense {2213 (135
Net fee and commission income 84 405
Mt gain trom foreign currencies dealings G5 204
Mer foreign curreney revaluation {loss)/gein fddd) 9
Wet loss fromy disposal of investment property - 1873}
Met loss drom disposal of assets held tor sale (397 -
Impuirment luss on the ssets held for sale (1,452} 1,683}
Impairment loss on debt financial assets and loan commitments, net |2 (2.933) (2733
Salaries and emplovment berefits expetises [ B8 12,0534
General administmlive expenses 7 (2,637 (2.763)
Chber inpeome 371 1495
I.oss before income tax {5,215) (h,259)
Income tax benefi ] 528 £l
Luss for the year {4.687) (4,2 !.l}}
Dher comprehensive income b
Revaluation of land and buildings 2490 N LI
Income tax relating 1o components of other comprehensive meome [383) (47
Total other comprehensive income . 2,107 268
Total comprehensive loss for the yvear (2,580 '3.&;51_

* The Bank has initially applied [FRS 9 at | January 2018, Under the transition method chosen.
comparative information is not restated (sce Note 3(e)). As a result of adoption of I[FRS 9 the
Bank changed presentation of cenain captions, comparative information is re-presented
accordingly (see Note 3(e)).

The financial stalements as set oul on pages 6 to 50 were approved by management on
15 May 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:

7 N e e e AR
o >
Eli Enﬂ/ M;a Merabishvili
Chief Executive Officer _~~ Chief Financial Officer

¥,

The siatement of profit or loss =8 ofer compeehensive mcome 15 1o be read in conjunction with the notes
to, and forming pert of, the Sl s———
f
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ASSETS

Cash and cash eguivalents
Amounts due from credit instinutions
Investment socuritics

I Aans [0 Cusinmers
Praperty and equipment
Investinent property
[ntangible nssets

Assets held for sale
Current tax nssel

(hher assets

Tzl assets

LIABILITIES

Current accounts and deposis from-cusiomers
Subordinated bormowings

Deterred tx habahines

Oither liabilities

Total linbilities

EQUITY

Share capital
Reserves
Acoumulated loss
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Motes

A1 December 2018

JEC Nitk Road Bank
Starement of Froancuel Poxitien ag ar 30 December 2008

31 December 2007

CaEL™(HM) GEL000
073 15,5973
2.18% Fi
13.637 10,2535
[ 5,987 frdi3
(MR 16274
Bk
56 57
44918 5 RO
55 2500
823 577
75921 58,5600
| 2 RN2 [5463
G070
[ 34 it
®73 iy
13,899 25,508
LERE JOLEHM)
7,322 533
(frd440) A
62,022 13,058
715021 58,560

* The Bank has initially applied IFRS 9 at | January 2018, Under the transition method chosen,
comparative information is not restated (see Note 3{e)). As a result of adoption of [FRS 9 the
Bank changed presentation of certain captions, comparative information is re-presented

accordingly (see Note 3(e)).

The staiement of financial peston & & be sead

financial statements.

comunction with the notes o, and forming part of, the

)
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l JSC Sifk Road Bank
- Stetement of Cash Flows for the vear ended 31 Decomber 2018
l 2018 27
MNotes GEL™000 GEL™000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
l Interest recerpis 4115 1069
Hiterest paviments (5871 1G5y
Fee and commission receipts 745 S48}
I Fee and cominission payments 221) (13m
MNet receipts from foreign currencies denlings @51 a4
Other income recenpts A2 344
Personnel expenses paid i 1,848) (2.0)3)
Urher general admimistrative expenses paid (240500 (2652}
iIncrease) decresse in operating assets
Amounts due from credil institutions 14 9.95]
Livans 1o customers (12447 [. 188
(Mher asscts | 54 |7
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
) Deposits and balances from banks . 15,0001}
, Current oecounts and deposas from customens (2,547 {17,468)
Cher latativies 144 (112
Net cash flows from operations (14.155) {1 ﬁ.ﬁlﬂT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Furchases of investment securities [ LGRS
Proceeds from sale of investment securities T.262 1:831
Privceeds from sale of investment property - 1,244
Purchase of property plant and equipment and intangible assets {21} (47)
Proceeds frinn sale of investment property | 74
Netcash (used in)/Mows used in iny esting activities . {3.442) o 3202
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
tRepayment o) proceeds from subordinated borrwings (8,990 9,060
Procecds from issue of share capital ALL146
Net cash flows from financing activities 22,156 9,060
Net incredse (decrease) in cash and cush equivalents 4. 100 {4,147)
Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents (430 192
Cash und cash equivalents as at the beginning of the vear 15973 204 20
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year q - 20,073 o 15973

* The Bank has initially applied IFRS 9 at | January 2018, Under the transition method chosen.

comparative information 1s not restated (see Note ). As a result of adoption of IFRS 9 the Bank
changed presentation of certain captions, comparative information is re-presented accordingly
(see Note 3(h))

The statement of cash flows = © be sead = cosfemction with the notes (0, and torming part of. the financial
statements



GELTH)

Balance as at 1 January 2017

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
[avss for the year

Other comprehensive income/{loss)
Revaluation reserve for propenty and
cquipment

Deferred tax effect

Depreciation of revaludtion reserve, net of pas
Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income/{luss)

Balance as at 31 December 2007

Balance as at 31 December 2017%
Adjustment om initial application of [TFRS Y,
Lt of tax (see e §)

Restuted balance as w1 January 2018
Total comprehensive income /(loss)

Lovas fior the yeor

Other comprehensive income/{loss)
Hevaluation of property plant gnd equipioent
Deferred wax effect

Depreciation of revaluation reserve, net of wx
Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

Transuctions with owners, recorded
directly in equity

Shares issued

Total transactions with owners

Balance as ot 31 December 2018

JEC Sk Road Bank
Sratement ol Chanpes in Equity for the vear ended 31 Becember 2018

Retained
Revaluation reserve earnings'
Share af property and taccumulated Total
_capiml cquipment loas} - ey uity

A0 R 5,133 | 85T FT.O
(4,220) {4.2240
5 - 35
(47) - 147

i 101y ([LHH

- 168 10
= 168 (4,121 {3.952)
30,000 §321 (2.263) 33,058
LIRS 53N (2.263) 13,058

2 . 0% 398

RIKE 5,321 {1,865) 33450
- (4687 (4.087)
. 2400 5 2,490
[3H3) {383

- | 166} it
- 2001 11k 2,107
2001 (4.581) {2.58()
31,146 3,146
31,146 - - RIWE L
ol.146 T2l (. 446) 62,022

* The Bank has initially applied IFRS 9 at | January 2018, Under the transition method chosen,
comparative information is not restated (see Note 5). As a resull of adoption of IFRS 9 the Bank
changed presentation of certain captions, comparative information is re-presented accordingly

{see Note 3(h)).

The statement of chances n og=ty = 1o |

financial statjemenis

~smjunction with the notes o, and forming part of. the

H



(a)

(b}

(a)

(b)

(c)

JSEC Stk Road Benk

Notps do, ond forming part of, the financial statemenis for the vear ended 33 December 2008

Background
Organisation and operations
JSC Silk Road Bank (the “Bank™) is a Georgian joint stock company.

The Bank accepts deposits from the public and extends credit, transfers payments in Georgia and abroad,
exchanges currencies and provides other banking services to its corporate and retail customers. The
Bank’s registered legal address is 2. Zaarbrukeni Square, Thilisi, Gieorgia. The Bank 1s regulated by the
National Bank of Georgia (the "NBG™: the central bank of Georgia) and conducts the business under
license number 238,

l'ax wdentification number of the Bank 1s 201953027 and the registening authonty 1s Didube-Chupguret
district court.

Asat 3] December 20018 and 2017, the shareholders of the Bank are as follows;

Ownership %

Mame 2018 2017

Silk Road Finanoe 38C L) L) L) L
(hher .0k (14
Tuotal 100,03 [

The Bank is ultimately controlled by Mr Giorgi Ramishvili, a Georgian businessman, who has a number
of business interests outside the Bank. Related party transactions are disclosed in Note 18.

Business environment

The Bank’s operations are primarily located in Georgia. Consequently, the Bank 1s exposed to the
economic and financial markets of Georgia, which display characteristics of an emerging market,
The fegal, tax and regulatory frameworks continue development, but are subject 1o varyving
interpretations and frequent changes which together with other legal and fiscal impediments
contribute to the challenges taced by entities operating in Georgia

The financial statements reflect management’s assessment of the impact of the Georgian business
environment on the operations and financial position of the Bank. The future business environment
may differ from management’s assessment.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporing Standards ([FRS),

This is the first set of the Bank s annual financial statements to which IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
and IFRS 13 Revenue from Contracts with Customers has been applied. Changes to significant
accounting policies are described m Note 2(e).

Basis of measurement

The financial statements are prepared on the histonical cost basis except that, Land and Buildings,
and investment property which are camed at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional cusrency of the Bank is the Georgian Lan (GEL) as, being the national carrency of
the Republic of Georsia, #t reflects the economic substance of the majority of underlying events
and circumstances relevas o them

[
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(d)

(e)

JSEC Silk Road Bank
Nates to, and forming part of, the. financtal statements for the vear ended 31 December 2008

The GEL is also the presentation currency for the purposes of these financial statements.
Financial information presented in GEL is rounded to the nearest thousand,

Use of estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial stateremts, managemen! has made judgement, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the Bank’s accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities. income and expense, Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlving assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions (o accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

®  Applicable to 2008 only
— classification of financial assets: assessment of the business model within which the assets
are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely

pavments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding —Note 3{e)i).

—  establishing the criteria tor determining whether credit nsk on the financial asset has
increased  significantly  since initial recognition, determining methodology  for
incorporating forward-looking information into measurement of ECL and selection and
approval of models used to measure ECL -~ Note 4.

« Applicable to 2018 and 2017

_ Loans to customers; impairment allowance estimates — Note Me)(iv)
—  land and building revaluation estimate — Note |3

Assumptions and estimations uncertainty

Information aboul assumptions and cstimation uncertainties that have a significam nisk of resulung
in @ material adjustment in the year ended 31 December 2018 is included in the following notes:

e Applicable 10 2018 only

—  impairment of financial instruments: determining inputs into the ECL measurement model.
including incorporation of forwand-looking information — Note 4

e Applicable to 2018 and 2017

—  loans to customers; impairment allowance estimates — Note 3{e)iv)
— land and building revaluation estimates — Note 13

Changes in accounting policies and presentation

The Bank has initially adopted I[FRS 9 and I[FRS 15 from | January 20185,

A number of other new standards are also effective from 1 January 2018 but they do not have a
material effect on the Bank's financial statements.



J8C S Road Bank
Vates to, and forming part of, the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2008

Due to the transition methods chosen by the Bank in applying IFRS 9, comparative information
throughout these financial statements has not generally been restated to reflect its requirements.

The effect of initially applying these standards is mainly attributed to the following:

* anincrease in impairment losses recognised on financial assels (see Note 5);
* additional disclosures related 10 IFRS 9 (see Notes 4 and 1R

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities
and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. This standard replaces TAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The requirements of [FRS 9 represent a significant
change from IAS 39, The new standard brings fundamental changes to the account ing for financial
assets and 10 certain aspects of the accounting for financial liabilities,

As a resull of the adoption of IFRS 9, the Bank has apphied consequential amendments to
LAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, which require separate presentation in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income ol interest revenue calculated using the effective
miterest method. Previously, the Bank disclosed this amount in notes to the financial statements,

Additionally, the Bank has adopted consequential amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments.
Disclosures that are applied to disclosures about 2018 but have not been applied to the comparative
information,

The key changes 1o the Bank’s accounting policies resulting from its adoption of TERS 9 are
summanised helow,

Classification of financial assets and financial labilities

[FRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) and fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL). IFRS 9 classification is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset
is managed and its contractual cash flows. The standard elminates the existing LAS 39 cateporics
of held-to-maturity, loans and receivables and avaitable-for-sale, Under IFRS 9, derivatives
embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset in 1he scope of the standard are never
bifurcated. Instead, the whole hybrid instrument is assessed for classification, For an explanation
of how the Bank classifics financial assets under IFRS 9. see Note eMi).

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requiremenis in 1AS 39 for the classification of financial
liabilities, However, although under [AS 39 al] fair valye changes of liabilities designated under
the fair value option were recognised in profit or loss, under IFRS 9 fair value changes are generally
presented as follows:

e the amount of change in the fair value that is attributable (o changes in the credit risk of the
liability is presented in other comprehensive income: and
¢ the remaining amount of change in the fair value is presented in profit or loss.

For an explanation of how the Bank classifies financial liabilities under [FRS 9, see Note 3e)i),
Impairment of financial assers

IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss” model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss” model. The new
impairment model also applies to certain lean commitments and financial guarantee contracts but
1ol to equity investments

Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recogmised earlier than under 1AS 39. For an explanation of how
the Bank applies the impairment reguirements of [IFRS 9, see Note 3eMiv),
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JEC Sk Road Bank

Nertes to. and forming pari af the financial afafements for the year ended 31 DécembBer 2088

Transition

Changes i accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 have been applied
retrospectively, except as described below.

« Comparative periods have nat been restated. Differences in the carrying amounts of financial
assels and financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 are recognised in retained
eamnings and reserves as at | Tanuary 2018, Accordingly, the information presented as al and
for the year ended 31 December 2017 does not reflect (he requirements of IFRS 9 and therefvre
Is not comparable to the information presented as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018
under IFRS 9.

The Bank used the exemption not to restate comparative periods but considering that the
amendments made by IFRS 9 to IAS | introduced the requirement to present ‘interest income
caleulated using the effective interest rate” as a separate line item in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

« The following assessment has been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances (hat
existed at the date of initial application.

- The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held.

» Itadebt security had low credit risk at the date of initial application of IFRS 9, then the Bank
has assumed that credit risk on the asset had not increased significantly since its initial
recognition.

For more information and details on the changes and implications resulting from the adoption of
IFRS 9, see Note 5,

B.  IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when
revenue 1s recognised. It replaced IAS 18 Revenue, 1AS 1] Construction Contracts and Related
Interprerations.

The Bank has adopted IFRS 15 using the cumulative effeet method (without practical expedienis),
with the effect of initially applying this standard recognised at the date of initial application
(ie. 1 January 2018). The timing or amount of the Bank's fee and commission income from
contracts with customers was not impacted by the adoption of IFRS 15 and the transition did not
hive effect on the equity of the Bank at | January 2018,

T

Significant accounting policies

Except for the changes disclosed in Note 2(e), the Bank has consistentls applied the following
accounting pelicies 1o all periods presented in these financial statements.

(a)  Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated 1o the functional currency of the Bank at exchange
rates at the dates of the ransactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
retranslated to the functional carrency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain
or loss on monetary items is the difference hetween amortised cost in the functional curreney at the

E

beginning of the period, adiusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the
amortised cost in forcign currency transiated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period,

13



Mwtes . aond frmitag par of, e financial statemenis for the vear ended 31 December 2008

I SEC Kk Road Bank

MNon-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair
vitlue are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchanpe rate at the date that the fair value
is determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency differences ansing on retranslation are recognized i profit or loss.

(b) Interest
Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
Effective interest rate

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.
The “effective interest rate” is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the finaneial instrument 10;

o the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
s the amortised cost of the financial lishility,

When caleulating the effective interest rate for financial instruments other than purchased or
originated credit-impaired assets, the Bank estimates future cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument, but not expected credit losses. For purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets. a credit-adjusted effective interest rate 15 calculated using estimated
future cash flows including expected credit losses.

The caleulation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees and points paid or
recelved that are an integral pan of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability

Amuortised cost and gross careying amount

The ~amortised cost” of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repavments. plus
or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between
that initial smount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for an v expected
credit loss allowanee (or impairment allowance before | January 2018).

The "gross carrying amount of a financial asset” measured at amortised cost is the amortised cost
of a financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance.

Calcularion of interest income and expense

The effective interest rate of a financial asset or financial hability is calculated on initial recognition
of a financial assct or a financial liability. In calculating interest income and expense, the effective
interest rate 15 applied to the gross carmmying amount of the asset (when the assef is not credit-
impaired) or to the amortised cost of the Lability,

However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition,
interest income is calculated by applying the eftective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income
reverts to the gross basis

For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition, interest income is calculated
by applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the asset, The
calculation of interest income does not revert 10 @ gross basis. even if the credit risk of the asset
improves.

For information on when financial assets are credit-impaired, see Nate 3(e)iv).
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(d)

JEC Stk Road Bank
Votes 1o, and forming part of, the finareciol statements for the Vvear ended 31 December 2018

Presentation

Interest income calculated using the effective interest method presented in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income includes interest on financial assets measured at amortised
cost.

Interest expense presented in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
includes interest on financial liabilities measured ar amortised cost.

Policy applicable before | January 2018
Effective interest rate

Interest income and expense were recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.
The effective interest rate was the rate that exactly discounted the estimated future cash payments
and receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial lakility (or, where
appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability,
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimated future cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit losses,

The calculation of the effective interest rate included transaction costs and fees and points paid or
received that were an integral pan of the effective mnterest rate. Transaction costs included
incremental costs that were dircetly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or
financial lability.

Presentarion

Interest income calculated using the effective interest method presented in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income includes interest on financial assets measured at amortized
cost.

Fees and commission

Fee and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial
asset or financial liability are included in the effective interest rate {see Note Ab),

If a loan commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, then the related loan
commilment fee i8 recognised on a straight-line basis over the commitment period.

A contract with a customer that results in a recognised financial instrument in the Bank’s financial
statements may be partially in the scope of IFRS 9 and partially in the scope of [FRS 15, If this is
the case, then the Bank first applies IFRS 9 to separate and measure the part of the contract that is
irt the scope of IFRS 9 and then applies IFRS 15 io the residual.

Other fee and commission expenses relate mainly to transaction and service fees, which are
expensed as the services are received

Taxation

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates 1o items of other comprehensive income or transactions with shareholders
recognized directly m eguity, m which case it is recognized within other comprehensive income or
direct]ly within equity.
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i Current tax

Current tax expense is the expected tax payvable on the taxable income for the YEIT, USING 1ax rates
enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date. and any adjustment to 1ax pavable n respect
of previous vears. Current tax payable also includes any tax liability arising from dividends.

On 13 May 2016 the Parliament of Georgia passed the bill on corporate income tax reform
(also known as the Estonian model of corporate taxation), which mainly moves the moment of
taxation from when taxable profits are eamed 1o when they are distributed. The law has entered
into force in 2016 and is effective for 1ax periods starting afier | January 2017 for all entities excepl
for financial institutions (such as banks, insurance companies, microfinance organizations,
pawnshops), for which the law will become effective from | January 2023,

The new system of corporate income taxation does not imply exemption from C orporate Income
Tax (CIT), rather CIT taxation is shified from the moment ol earmning the predits 1o the moment of
their distribution; i.e. the main tax object is distributed carmings. The Tax Code of Georgia defines
I Distributed Eamings (DE) to mean profit distributed to sharcholders as a dividend. However some
other transactions are also considered as DE. for example non-arm’s length cross-horder
transactions with related parties and/or with persons exempted from tax are also considered as DE
| for CIT purposes. In addition, the tax object includes expenses or other payments not related to the
¢ entity’s economic activities, free of charge supply and over-limit representative expenses.

Tax reimbursement is available for the current tax paid on the undistributed carnings in the vears
2008-2017, if those earnings are distributed in 2019 or further vears,

The corporate income 1ax arising from the payment of dividends {s sccounted lor as an expense in
the period when dividends are declared, regardless of the actual pavment date or the periad for
which the dividends are paid,

iL. Deferved tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
laxation purposes.

Deferred 1ax 1s measured a1 the tax rates that are expected 1o beapplied to the tetnporary differences
when they reverse. based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted hy the
reporting date,

I'he measurement of deferred 1ax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow the manner in which the Bank expects. at the end of the reporting period, to recover or setile
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilitics.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be avaulable against which the temporary differences, unused tax losses and credits can be
utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized

(e)  Financial assets and financial liabilities
i Classification
Financial assers — Policy applicable from | January 2018

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, FVOCI or

FENTHL
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A financial asset is measured at amortised cost iT it meets both of the following conditions and is
nol designated as at FVTPL:

» the asset 1s held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

 the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOC! only if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL;

e the asset is held within a business model whose objective 15 achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets: and

» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely puyments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debt financial assets measured at FVOCI, gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the following, which are recogmised in profit or loss in the same
manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost:

. * interest income using the effective interest method;
o [ECL and reversals; and
* foreign exchange gains and losses.

When a debt financial asset measured at FVOC! is derccognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss,

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.

In addition, on mitial recognition, the Bank may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if
domp so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise
(see Note 3(elv)).

Business model assessment

The Bank makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business 1s managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

¢ the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice
In particular, whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of the liabilitics that are funding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale
of the assets:

* how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reporied to the Bank’s management:

o the risks that alfect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how those nisks are managed,

¢ how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is hased on the
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

¢ the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior penods, the reasons for such sales and its
expeclations about future sales activity. However. information about sales activity is not
considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Bank’s stated objective
for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised.

Finaneial assets that are beld for trading or managed and whose performance is-evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured 2t FVTPL becauee they are neither held o colleet contractual cash flows
nor held both 1o collect contractma! cach flows and to sell financial assets.

17
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Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment. *principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the
credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and
for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profil
margir,

In-assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Bank considers the contractual terms of the instrument, This includes assessing whether the
financial asset comains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Bank considers:

* contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows:
leverage features;
prepayment and extension terms;
terms that limit the Bank’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e. £. non-recourse asset
arrangements): and
* features that madify consideration of the time value of money e.g. periodical reset of interest
. rates.

Reclassification

. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recogmtion, except in the period after
the Bank changes its business model for managing {inancial assets.

Financial assets — Policy applicable before 1 January 2018
I'he Bank classified its financial assets into one of the following categories:

o loans and receivables;
held-to-maturity;

available-tor-sale; and

#l FVTPL, and within this category as:

" & @»

- held for trading: or
— designated as at FVTPL,

Financial liabilities

The Bank classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial cuarantees and loan commitments,
as measured at amortised cost,

Reclassification

Financial liabilities are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition,
il.  Derecognition

Financial assets

T'he Bank derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash fows in a Lransaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset arc transferred
or in which the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.
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On derecognition of a financial asset. the difference between the carryving amount of the asseél (or
the carrving amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of
(1) the consideration received (including any new assel obtained less any new liability assumed)
and (i1) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recogmsed in other comprehensive mcome is
recognised in protit or loss,

Financial liabilities

The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

Maodification of financial assets and financial liabilities
Policy applicable from I January 2018
Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Bank evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified assel are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different (referred 1o
as ‘substantial modification”), then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial
assct are deemed to have expired, In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised and a
new financial assel is recognised at fair value plus any eligible transaction costs. Any fees received
as part ol the modification are accounted for as follows;

o fees that are considered in determining the fair value of the new asset and fees that represent
reimbursement of eligible transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the asset;
and

» other fees are included n profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on derecognition.

The Bank performs u quantitative and qualitative evaluation of whether the modification is
substantial. i.¢. whether the cash flows of the original [inancial asset and the modified or replaced
financial asset are substantially different. The Bank assesses whether the modification is substantial
based on guantitative and qualitative factors in the following order: qualitative factors, quantitative
factors, combined effect of qualitative and guantitative factors. If the cash flows are substantially
ditterent, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the onginal financial asset deemed 1o have
expired. In making this evaluation the Bank analogizes 1o the guidance on derecognition of
financial liabilities.

The Bank concludes that the modification 1s substantial as a result of the followmng qualitative
factors:

» change the currency of the financial asset;
» change in collateral or other credit enhancement.

It cash flows are modified when the borrower is in financial difficulties, then the objective of the
modification is usually to maximise recovery of the original contractual terms rather than to
originale a new asset with substantially different terms. If the Bank plans to modify a financial asset
in a way that would result in forgiveness of cash flows, then it first considers whether a portion of
the asset should be written off before the modification takes place (see below for write-off policy).
This approach impacts the result of the quantitative evaluation and means that derecognition eriteria
are not usually met in such cases. The Bank further performs gualitative evaluation of whether the
modification is substantial.

If the modification of a financial asset measured at amortised ¢ost does not result in derecognition
of the financial asset, then the Bank first recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset using the original effective mierest rate of the asset and recopnises the resulting adjustment

as a modification gam or Joss = profit or loss. Any costs or fees incurred and fees received as part
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of the modification adjust the pross carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are
amortised over the remaming term of the moditied financial asset.

It such a modification 15 carmied out because of hnancial difficulties of the bormrower
(see Note 3(e)(iv)). then the gain or loss is presented together with impairment losses. In other
cases, 1t is presented as interest mcome caleuldted using the effective interest method
{see Note 3(b)).

Financial liabilities

The Bank derccogmises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new fnancial hability based on the
madifled térms is recogmised at fr value. The difference between the carryving amount of the
linancial lability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in
profit or loss. Consideration paid includes non-financial assets transferred, if any, and the
assumption of liabilities, inc¢luding the new modified financial liability.

Bank performs a quantitative and qualitative evaluation of whether the modification is substantial
considering qualitative factors, quantitative factors and combined effect of qualitative and
quantitative factors. The Bank concludes that the modification 1s substantial as a result of the
tollowing qualitative factors:

» change the currency of the financial liability;
« change in cellateral or other credit enhancement:

For the guantitative assessment the terms are substantially different if the discounted present value
of the cash flows under the new terms. including any fees paid net of any fees received and
discounted using the onginal effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the
discounted présent value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.

[f the modilication of a financial hability 1s not accounted for as derecognition, then the amorhised
cost of the lability is recaleulated by discounting the modified cash flows at the orignal effective
interest rate and the resulting gaimn or loss is recognised in profit or loss. For floating-rate financial
liabilities, the original effective interest rate used 1o calculate the modification gain or loss is
adjusted 1o reflect current market terms at the time of the modification. Any costs and fees incurred
are recognised as an adjustment to the carrying amount of the liability and amortised over the
remaining term of the modified financial liability by re-computing the effective interest rate on the
Instrument,

Policy applicable before | January 2018
Financial assets

If the terms of a linancial asset were modified, then the Bank evaluated whether the cash flows of
the moditied asset were substantially different. If the cash flows were substantially different, then
the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial assel were deemed to have expired.
In this case, the onginal fnancial asset was derecognised (see Note 3elii)) and a new financial
asset was recognised at fair value.

Il the terms of a financmal asset were modified becavse of fnancial difficulties of the borrower and
the asset was not derecognised. then impairment of the assel was meéasured using the pre-
modification inierest rate (see Note 3(eliv))

Financial liabilities

The Bank derecogmised 2 finsncial hisbilny when i1s terms were modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability were sebstantially different In this case. a new financial liability based on the
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modified terms was recognised at fair value, The difference between the carrving amount of the
financial liability extinguished and consideration paid was recognised in profit or loss.

If the modification of a financial liability was not accounted for as derecognition, then any costs
and fees incurred were recognised as an adjustment to the carrying amount of the liability and
amortised over the remaming term of the modified financial lability by re-computing the ¢ffective
interest rate on the instrument.

Impairment
See also Note 4,
Policy applicable from I January 2018

The Bank recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on the firllowing financial
instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:

s financial assets that are debt instruments:
o loan commitments issued,

The Bank measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, excepl for the following,
for which they are measured as | 2-month ECL:

*  Debt investment securities assets are determined to have low credit risk at the reporiing date;
and

¢ other financial instruments on which credit nsk has not increased sigmificantly since their
initial recognition (see Note 4),

The Bank considers a debt investment security and other financial assets to have low credit risk.

I 2-month ECI. are the portion of ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within the 12 months afler the reporting date. Financial instruments for which a 12-
month ECL is recognised are referred to as “Stage | financial instruments.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of
the financial instrument, Financial instruments for which a lifetime ECL is recognised are referred
loas “Stage 2° financial instruments.

Measwrcment of ECL
ECL are a prohability-weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

*  financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (Le. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the
contract and the eash flows that the Bank expeets to receive):

* financial asscts that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the
gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows: and

* undrawn loan commitments: s the present value of the difference between the contractual cash
flows that are due to the Bank if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the
Bank expects to receive,

See also Note 4
Restructured financial assers

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified oran existing financial asset is replaced
with a new one due to fimancial difficulties of the borrower, ther an assessment is made af whether
the finaricial asset should be derecognised (see Note 3(e)iii)) and ECL are measured as follows
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o [If the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the
expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in caleulating the
cash shorfalls from the existing asset {see Note 4).

s [ the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected
fair value of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at
the time of its derecognition, This amount 15 included in caleulating the cash shortfalls from
the existing financial asset that are discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the
reporting date using the original effective interest rate of the existing financial asset,

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether [inancial assets camed at amortised cost are
credit-impaired (refierred 1o as *Stage 3 Nnancial assets’, A Anancial assel is “credit-impaired” when
one or more ¢vents that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assel have occurred,

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data;
For retail loans:

- Death of borrower:

- Loans past due more than 90 days;
Restructuring of the loan, linked with the economic loss;
Court’s decision, which causes the borrower’s inability to service its debt obligations;
Fraud event or misteading information from the borrowers side. that may atfect the
company s solvency.

For business loans:

- Bankruptey proceedings of the borrower,

Loans past due more than 90 davs;
- Restructunng of the loan, hnked with the economic loss;
- Iransferring any of the borrower’s loan to Stage 3.

Presentation af allowance for ECL in the stutement of financial position
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

e financial assets measured at amortised cost including undrawn lpan commitment en credit
cards: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets;

Write-offs

Loans and debt securities are writlen off {either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovenng a financial asset i its entirety or a portion thereof, This 1s generally the
case when the Bank determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash Nows 1o repay the amounts subject o the write-ofT, This assessment
is carried out at the individual asset level.

Recovenies of amounts previously written off are included in ‘impairment losses on financial
instruments” in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assets that are written off could stll be subject to enforcement -activitics in order o
comply with the Bank’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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Paolicy applicable before | Januwary 2018

The Bank assesses al each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impared. A financial assel or a group of finaneial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that has occurred after the imitial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event”)
and that loss event (or events} has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence ol impairment may
include indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or prnncipal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankrupley or other financial reorganisation and where observahle data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaulis.

Amounts due from credit institutions and loans to customers

For amounts due from credit institutions and loans to customers carried at amortised cost, the Bank
first assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists: individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not

. mdividueally significant. 1f the Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the assel in a group
of fnancial assets with similar credit risks characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assels that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss
is, or continues to be, recognised are not incleded in-a collective assessment of impairment

If there is an ohjective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is. measured as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not vet been
mcurred ). The carmving amount of the asset 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Interest imcome continues to
he acerued on the reduced carrying amount based on the original effective interest rate of the asset.
Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transterred to the Bank. If, in a
subsequent vear, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event nccurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
mereased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. 11 a future write-ofT is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to the statement of profit or loss,

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. If 2 foan has a vanable interest rate, the discount rite for measunng any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate, The calculation of the present value of the
estimated future cash flows of a collateralised Anancial asset reflects the cash Mows that may result
from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral. whether or not foreclosure 15
prohable,

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impatrment. financial assets are grouped on the basis
of the Bank’s internal product monitoring syvstem that considers credit risk characteristics such as
assel (vpe, industry, geographical location, collateral 1ype, past-due status and other relevant
factors.

Future cash tlows on a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are
estimated on the basis of historical loss expenence for assets with eredit risk chHaracteristics similar
to those in the group

(3
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Held-to-maturtry financial invesrmints

For held-to-maturity investments the Bank assesses individually whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrving amount and the
present vilue of estimated future cash flows, The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss 1s recogmised in the statement of profit or loss,

If, in a subsequent vear, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, any amounts formerly charged are eredited to the
statement of profit or loss,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand. amounts due from the National Bank of Georgia,
excluding obligatory reserves, and amounts due from financial institutions that mature within
ninety days of the date ol origination and are free from contractual encumbrances.

L.oans to customers

Palicy applicable from I January 2018

‘lLoans 10 customers” caption in the statement of financial position include loans to customers
measured at amortized cost (see Note 3(e)(i)): they are initially measured at fair value plus
incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently at their amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

Policy applicable before 1 January 2018

Loans to customers were non-dertvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
were not guoted in an active market and that the Bank did not intend to scll immediately or in the
near lerm.

Loans to customers included those classified as loans and receivables.

Loans to customers were inihally measured at fair value and subsequently measured at their amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Investment securities
Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
The “mvestment securities’ caption in the statement of financial position includes:

« debt investment secunities measured at amortised cost (see Note 3(e)(i)); these are initially
measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently at their
amortised cost using the effective interest methodd:

Policy applicable before | January 2018

Investment securilies were initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of investment securities
not al FVTPL, incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently accounted for depending on
their classification as either held-to-matunty, FVTPL or available-for-sale

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-matunty mvestments were non-denvative assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity that the Bank had the positive mtent and ability 10 hold to maturity, and which were
not designated as at FVTPL or as savsilsble-for-sale
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Held-to-maturity investments were carried at amortised cost using the effective mterest method, less
any impaiment losses. A sale or reclassification of a more than insignificant amount of held-to-
matunty investments would result in the reclassification of all held-to-maturity investments as
available-for-sale, and would prevent the Company from classifying investment securities as held-1o-
maturity for the current and the following twe financial years. However, sales and reclassifications in
any of the following circumstances would not trigger a reclassitication:

o sales or reclassifications that were so ¢lose to maturity that changes in the market rate of interest
would not have a significant effect on the financial asset’s fair value:

» sales or reclassifications alter the Bank had collected substantially all of the asset’s original
principal: and

e sales or reclassifications that were sttributable to non-recurring isolated events bevond the
Bank's control that could not have been reasonably anticipated

Property and equipment

Property and equipment, except for land and buildings, 15 camed at cost, excluding the costs of dav-to-
day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment, Such cost includes the
cost of replacing part of equipment when that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met,

The carrying values of equipment are reviewed {or impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrving value may not be recoverahle,

Following initial recognition at cost, land and buildings are carried at a revalued amount, which is
the fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the tair value of a revalued asset does not differ matenally from 1ts carrying amount.

Accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount
of the assel and the el amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset, Any revaluation
surplus is credited to the revaluation reserve for property and equipment included in other
comprehensive imcome, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the inerease is recognised in
the statement of profil or loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
except that a deficit directly offsetting & previous surplus on the same asset is directly offset against
the surplus in the revaluation reserve for property and equipment.

An annual transfer from the revaluation reserve for property and equipment to retained earnings is
made for the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrving amount of the assets
and depreciation based on the assets original cost. Upon disposal. any revaluation reserve relating
to the particular asset being sold 1s transterred to retained earnings,

Diepreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use, Depreciation is caleulated on a struight-
line basts over the following estimated useful lives:

Yeirs
Butldings 50
Furmiture god Aixtures 400
Coamputers and office equipment 400
Mitor vehicles 5
Other da i

I'he asset’s residual values. useful lives and methods are reviewed. and adjusted as appropriate. at
gach financial year-end.

Costs related 1o repairs end renewals are charged when incurred and included in other operating

expenses, unless they qualify for capitahization
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Non-current assets held for sale

Bank classify a non-current asset (or disposal group) repossessed property whose carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Fixed
assets held for sale are measured lower of camying amount and fair value less cost to sell.
Subsequent write downs of carrying amount of fixed assets held for sale are recognized as an
impairment loss. Gain on the subsequent increase in fair value less cost to sell of a disposal group
is recognized not in excess of previously recogmized impairment loss,

Share capital
Ovrdinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable 10 the issue of
ordinary shares and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Dividends

The ability of the Group to declare and pay dividends is subject io the rules and regulations of
Georgia. Dividends in relation to ordinary shares are reflected as an appropriation of retained
earmings m the period when they are declared.

Comparative information

As a result of adoption of IFRS 9 the Bank changed presentation of certain captions in the primary
forms of financial statements. Comparative information is reclassified to conform to changes in
presentation in the current period.

The effect of main changes in presentation of the statement of financial position is disclosed in
Note 5,

The effect of main changes in presentation of the statement of financial position as at
31 December 2017 15 as follows:

«  “Held-to-maturity investments” were presented within “Investment securities™ line item.

The effect of mam changes in presentation of the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 200 7 15 as follows;

«  “Interest income™ was presented within “Interest income caleulated using the effective interest
method™ line item:

«  “lmpatrment recoveries. net” were presented within “Impairment recoveries on debt financial
assets and loan commitments, net” line item.

Standards issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are efTective for annual pertods beginning
after 1 January 2019 with earlier application permutted; however, the Bank has not early adopted
them in preparing these financial statements, with the exception of the amendment to [FRS 9
affecting prepayment features with negative compensation 1ssued in October 2017

- |FRS 16- Leases:

—  [FRIC 23 Uncertainty over Tax Treatments:

—  Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Vermures (Amendnwents 1o [1AS 28),
—  Plan Amendmem, Curtaifment or Serilement (Amendments to 145 19);

—  Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 201 3-2017 Cvele — varions standards:
Amendments ro References o Conceprual Framework in [FRE Standards.
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Financial risk review

T'his note presents information about the Bank's exposure to Ninancial risks. For information on the
Bank’s financial risk management framework, see Note 18.

Credit risk - Amounts arising from ECL

Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment
See accounting policy in Nate J(e)(iv).

Significant increase in credit risk

When determinmyg whether the risk of default on a Anancial strument has mereased sigmificantly
since imitial recognition, the Bank considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort, This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis. based on the Bank's historical experience and expert credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.

The Bank uses two criteria for determining whether there has been a significant increase in credi
risk:

« qualitative indicators; and

»  backstop indicator of more than 30 days past due,

Grenerating the term structure of PD

Consumer loans

Modelling of probability of default of consumer loans is based on the collective analysis method
lfor gach segment of loan separately. According to definition of default. probability of default is
based on historic monthly migration analysis in accordance with defaults in segments for previous
4 years period. For the segments lacking historieal data, the period differs depending on what period
there are factual data.

For every segment, historical average monthly matrix was calculated and the probability of default
for desired period was defined by extrapolation of the matrix (1 year and whole hifecycle)

Corporate loans

The probability of default for the busiess loan is evaluated by an individual approach by an exper
on a rating system based on a scoring questionnaire.

The ¢ountry'’s rating i the base of the probability of basie default that represents a mting and lower
bound for the business loan.

Determining wihether credit risk has increased significantly

The Bank assesses whether credit risk has increased significantly sinee initial recognition at each
reporting period. Defimtion of sigmficant vares for different type of lending in particular between
corporate and retail.

As a general indicator, credit nsk of a particular exposure is deemed to have inereased significantly
since initial recognition based on the Bank's quantitative and qualitative modelling. Below are the
description of qualitative indicators of significant increase in credit risk
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Corporare customers

« Violation of financial or non-financial covenants;

+  Legal action to borrower, which may cause significant cash outflow;

»  Restructuring of the loan, which is not linked with the economic loss:

»  Placing lien or restriction on the bank account of the borrower:

»  Delay in providing financial information for | vear;

« EBITDA < 0 or EBITDA/Debl Payment < 1, compared to previous period:

- Significant deterioration of borrower’s financial position. includ mg: loss of contract with
main supplier; loss of main customer: forecast of negative cash flow: significant
deterioration of profitability

Retail customer

+  Restructuring of the loan, which is not linked with the economic loss:
»  Increase of Loan-to-Value ratio up to 100%:

«  If borrower falls in the debtor registry list;

»  Placing lien or restriction on the bank account of the borrower.

» Il borrower losses job:

As a backstop, the Bank considers that a significant increase in eredit risk occurs no later than when
an asset is more than 30 (more than 20 days for shor-term Silkloan Joans) days past due, Days past
due are determined by counting the number of days since the earliest missed due date in respect of
which full payment has not been received, Due dates are determined without considening any grace
period that might be available to the borrower.

If there is evidence that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk relative to initial
recognition, then the loss allowance on an instrument returns from lifetime ECL to being measured
as 12-month ECL.

I'he Bank monitors the effectiveness of the eritenia used to identifv significant increases in credit
risk by regular reviews 1o confirm that:

« the cniteria are capable of identifying significant inereases in credit risk before an EXposure is
in defauly:

« the enteria do not align with the point in time when an asset becomes more than 30 days past
due;

« the average time between the identification of a significant increase in credit risk and default
appears reasonable;

« exposures are not generally transferred directly from 12-month ECL measurement o
credit-impaired; and

« there 1s no unwarranted volatility in loss allowance from transfers between |2-month ECI
(stage 1) and lifetime ECL measurements (stage 2),

Incorporarion of forward-looking

In order to evaluate the effect of forward looking macrocconomic information on loan portfolio,
PD} of the whole loan portfolio was analysed and correlation coefficient between anmual average
PD of every quarter of last four years and 2 quarters lagged GDP growth rate was caleulated. PD-
s for every segment were adjusted by GDP forecasts considering the different weights of possible
scenarios (oplimistic scenario - 25%, base scenario - 30%, pessimistic scenario — 25%) and results
were incorporited in the calculation of annual PD by Vasicek's formula.

Modified financial assets

The contractual terms of & loan may be modified for a number of reasons, including changing
market conditions, customes ; som and other factors not related to a current or potential credit
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deterioration of the customer. An existing loan whose terms have been modified may be
derecognised and the renegotiated loan recognised as a new loan at fair value in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in Note 3(e)(iii).

When the terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in
derecognition, the determination of whether the asset’s credit risk has increased significantly
reflects comparison of!

« its remamng lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms: with
» the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data al initial recognition and the onginal
contractual terms,

When modification results in derecognition, a new loan is recognised and allocated to Stage |
{assurmning it 15 not credit-impaired at that time)

Measwrement of ECL
The key mputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the follewing variahles:

»  probability of default (PD):
»  loss given default (LGD);
o exposure al default (EAD).

ECL for exposures in Stage 1 is calculated by multiplying the 12-month PD by LGD and FAD.
Lifetime ECL 1s calculated by multiplying the lifetime PD by LGD and EAD. Bank further
discounts EAD from default date to the reporting date

The methodology of estimating PDs is discussed above under the heading “Generating the term
structure of PD™.

For the credit loss calculating purposes, the loss of the financial asset defaults is measured. The
loss on consumer loans 1s assessed collectively according to segments and business loans according
te indiviidual scenarios.

Collective loss m case of defaults:

To determine the LGD for cach segment Bank uses vintage approach. The percentage of recovered
portfolio of defaulted loans through its lifetime is derived. Loans are grouped by the defaull vears
and repaid exposure is linked to each group. Weighted average eftective interest rate is used for
discounting for each scgment.

Exposure at Default (EAD) represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Bank
differentiates EAD on a product basis. For Silkloan Plus, Collateralized and Uncolateralized loans
EAD is caleulated based on average remaining maturity of these products, for every year separately.
Bank assumes, that mid-year is the point of default (month 6), meaning that pavments were made
during first three months {month 3) and exposure becomes overdue stafing from fourth month
EAD for Credit cards is stated 1o be 100% of the disbursed amounts, EAD for Silkloan and Silknet
Subseriber loan — 1s 100% of the whole portfolio for the reporting date as these products are shori-
term by 18 nature,

For portfolios in respect of which the Bank has limited historical data, external benchmark
information is used to supplement the mternally available data. The portfolios for which external
benchmark information represents a significant input into measurement of ECL are as follows:

External benchmarks used

Exposure as at
GEL000 31 December 2018 rD

Loans (o corporale customers 8.510 Moody s defaule study

A
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The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balances of the loss
allowance by class of financial instruments. Comparative amounts for 2017 represent allowance
account for credit losses and reflect measurement basis under TAS 39,

s 7
GEL 000 Stage | Stage 2 Stape 3 Tuotal Individual  Collective Total
Loans 1o customers af
amortised cosi
Balance at | Janunry 213 158 724 1,105 455 1423 1878
Transter to Stage 2 (13 i) {23 - . - .
Fransfer to Stage 3 (31) (27} 5 - - - -
Met remeasurement of [oss
allowance (M8 (111 463 265 134 |3 273
Mew fnancial assers
omginated or purchased 3034 . 3034 . = =
Transfer 1o Stape X (3533 53 - - - = +
[ransfer 1o Stage 3 (1,723%) - 1.723 - - - -
Wite=nfis - = (790} {790 (2133 {435) (A8
Balance at 31 December 1.042 424 X153 619 76 1,127 1,503
2018 17
GEL 0 Stuge | Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Toial
Loans to customers 2 amortised cost —
COrporale customers’
Balance st | Junuary 62 - |5 b 455
Transter 1 Stage 3 {14) - |4 « .
Mot remeasurerment of lose allowance 1 5] - | 54z 154 134
Mew Tinancizl assets eriginated or
purchased 35 . . s -
Write-offs - - {213} {213} {213)
Balnnce at 31 December 81 = 114 195 176

* Asat | January 2018, the Bank does not hold credit-impaired loans to corporate customers for
which no |oss allowanee is recognised.
2018 2017
GELHM Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Todal
Loans 1o customers at amoertised cost —
retail customers
Balance m | Janwary |51 | 370 HEL 1423
Transfior to Stage 2 (15} =1} (25) =
lranster 1o Stage 3 (17 (27} + : .
Met remessurement of loss allowance (%3] {110 M 111 (34
Mew financial assets originated or
purchased 3,001 - = ERLI
Truesier o Stage 2 (353 353 . -
Transier to Stage 3 (1.723) LTS = z
Write-nffs . . (5377) (57T} 1435
Balance gt 31 December B61 424 2,039 3414 1,127

The following table provides a reconciliation between amounts shown in the above tables
reconciling opening and closing balances of loss allowance per class of financial instrument,

Loans (o customers
st amaortised cost -

Loans (o customers
ur gmortised cost -

GEL'(00 reteil customers  corporate customers Total
Net remeasuremnent of loss allowance 154 i 265
Mew financinl assets orpmeted or prochesed 3 300 3039
Kubroral 152 312 35
Recoveries of amounts previowsty smson off n‘:u_ 1 363} (371}
Total 184 1,749 2,933
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The significant changes in the gross carrying amount of Loans measured at amortized cost
dishursed to corporate and retail customers are further explained below.

GEL 000 Stage | Stage 2 Staged  Total

Loans to customers at amortised cosi

Balance ar | January inlh 542 e THM
Transfer to Stage 2 (17T 2aa (67T -
Transfer to Stage 3 11.173) 126 [,2949 =

MNew fAmancidl assets originated or purchased 15122 [ 2
[ransfer o Stoge 3 (713} 713 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (2,123 - Z112 -

Repayments tod other movements {(imcluding foreign

currency revaluntions) (2.293) (236) (T84} (3333)

Write-offs = - - (213} {213)

Balance at 31 December 14370 1,117 4,119 19606

2018

GEL 000 _ Stage | Stape?  Staged Tonal

Loans to customers at amortised cost — corporate

customers’

Balance at | Januwary 3,450 - 327 1807

’ Transfer 1o Stape 3 (U5} - 915 B

Mew finunciul assets originated or purchased 5,548 - 5545

Repayments and other movemenss {ineluding foreign

currensy revalunfions) 15499 . {831 1632

Write-offs - = (213 _{213)

Balance 2t 31 December 7,554 - 056 8.510

28

GEL 000 _ Smgel Stuge 2 Stage 3 Total

Loans to customers al amortised cost — retail

Cusiomers

Balance at | January 2130 542 1,445 4,123
Trimsker to Stage 2 (177} 244 (67 .
Transter v Srage 3 1 245) (124} v -

New financial ussets originated or purchased 9674 - . 674
Transter to Stage 2 (713 TES B -
Transter o Stage 3 {2002 - 22 -

Repayments and ether movements {including foreign

curreniey revalustions) (1,744) (256) (74 (27000

Balance at 31 December 6,816 1117 3,163 11096

Credit quality analysis

The following table sets out information about the eredit quality of financial assets measured at
amortised cost as at 31 December 2018, Unless specially mdicated, for financial assets, the amounts
in the table represent gross carrving amounts,

Explanation of the terms; Stage |, Stage 2. Stage 3, are included in Note 3e)(1v),

- 31 December 2018 :
GEL™H00 _ Stagel Stage 2 Stage 3 Totul
Loans te customers af amortised cosr -
COrprdie CHSTRRICES

tated B2 4,907 - - 4 407
Rated Caal A0 - - 2460
Rated Caad |87 . - 187
Unrated - - 956 )
Total T35 - 350 B.510
Loss allowance _(81) - [LAE1N (195)
Carrving amount 7473 - B42 8,318
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31 December 2018
GEL (00 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tuotal

Loans to customers of amortived cost— retail

CUHNTOMErs

Kitkloan

Mot overdue 26400 - - 26600
Online loans < Overdue less than 20 doys |78 - % |78
Online louns - Chverdoe 20-60 days - 27 - 207
Online lomms - Overdue more than 60 days - - 1406 |46
Other retail loans™®

Mot overdue 3,686 - - 3086
Overdue less than 3 days 202 - - 202
Crverdise 360 days . 214 . 134
Orverdue HGU-90 Javs . 141 = |41
Orverdue more than 90 days - 1,234 1.234
Chverdue less than 90 (wirh restruciore sEars | - 325 B 535
{hverdue more than 90 (with restrscture status) - - 323 523
Total loans to customers gross retail 6,816 1,117 A1y 11.0%%
Luss allowance {9a1) (424) i2.039) C3dy
Carrying amount 5.855 6931 1,124 7.672

* Expected credit losses under IFRS 9 for loans to retail customers include FCEL for undrawn loan
commuitments on credit cards,

At 31 December 2018, the Bank did not hold any tfinancial instruments for which no loss allowance
is recoenised because of coilateral

During the period, there was no chiange in the Bank™s collateral policies

Transition to IFRS 9

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities on the date of initial application of
IFRS 9

The following table shows the original measurement categories in accordance with IAS 39 and the
new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for the Bank’s financial assets as at | January 2018,

Original MNew Original carryving  New carrying
classification clussification amount under pmount under
GEL N Mote under IAS 39 under IFRS 9 1AS 30 IFRS 9

Financial assers
Loans and

Cash and cash equivalents 4% co Amortised cosl 15,973 15973
reccivables
Amaints due from credit Losanys amd : -
g e I ki Asmortised cost 2273 2273
institutions recelvables
Lians and ! .
|Lorans to gustomers 2 il Amortized cost f, 433 03]
receivables
. Held 1o maturity ! . .
Investment securifies 11 ; f Armortised cost 10,255 10,255
mvestment
i I Loans and l
Cber financinl asse T Amortised cost i4H 148
recervahles
Total finuncinl nssets 35,282 35,680
Financial linbilities
Current pocouns and ' . R
WE 14 Amortised oost Amortised cost [5463 15,463
deposits from customens
Suburdinated bormrwmgs ” Arrewizsed s AT 9070 G0
Other financial liabilities A rmorosed ot Amomsed cost 371 370
l'otal finuncial lishitities 24,910 24,010

2
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The following table reconciles the carrying amounts under IAS 29 to the carrving amounts under
IFRS 2 on transition to [FRS 9 on 1 January 2018,

IAS 39 IFRS 9
GEL D00 carrying amount carrving amouni
31 December 2017 Reclassification  Remeasurement | Japunry 2018

Fimancial assets
Amartised cos
Cash and cash equivalents: 15,973 - - 15973
Amounts due from credit
IMstiutions 2273 - - 2,273
Lﬁﬁ]’ls 4] CustoTneTs:

Cpenimg balance 6,431 : - -

Remersurement - - 308 .
Closing hatance - . - f R3]
Imvestment securities; 14255 - 0,255
Crher financial asset fulh. - - 345
Total amortised cost 35,282 - 108 5,680

As a result of adoption of IFRS 9 there were no reclassification or remeasurement of financial
liabilities.

. The following table summarises the impact, net of tax, of transition to IFRS 9 on the opening
balance of retained earnings. There is no impact on other components of equity.

Impact of adopting IFRS 9

GEL 000 : at 1 Januvary 2018
Retained earnings

Closing balanee under IAS 3931 December 201 7) {2.263)
Recogmition of expected credin losses under IFRS 9 for loans to éustoimers - 198
Opening balanee under IFRS 2 (1 January 2018) i1.865)

The lollowing table reconciles:

» the closing impaimment allowance for financial assets in accordance with TAS 39 as a
31 December 2017; o
* the opening ECL allowance determined in accordance with IFRS 9 as at | January 2018,

Impairment allowance and provisions

3 December 1 January 2018
GEL™H 2017 (1AS 39 Reclassification Remeasurement (IFRS 9}
Loans to customers | .&03 - _34E) . 408
Total measured at amortised cost 1,503 - {30K) 1.105

6 Net interest income calculated using the effective interest
method

0N 2017
GEL 0 GEL"00

Interest income
Loans co customers 215 | b
fnvestment secuntics w63 | 3diy
Oiher - 434 456
4.237 1810

Interest expense
Current accounts and deposits from costomes i) s
Subordinated borowing 339 3
587 6l
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General administrative expenses

2018 2017
1 S _GEL™000
Legal and consultancy |.283 T2
Depreciation wnd smortization expense 560 a1
Oecupaney and rent 444 297
Office supphies 440 4y
Advertising Expenses 57 12]
Operaling uses 238 221
Insuranue a1 120
Security L A5
Loss -on disposal of property and cquipment 4 13
Repar and maintenance of property wnd equipinent 33 29
Other 102 [t
3,637 2,765
Income tax benefit
018 017
GEL™00 GEL 04
Movemen! in deferred ey assets and lahilities doue o originaton and
reversal of temporary. differenices 338 39
Total income tax benefit 5218 9
In 2018, the applicable tax rate for current and deferred tax is 15% (2017 15%).
Reconciliation of effective tax rate for the vear ended 31 December:
2018 017
GEL'000 Ya GEL (00 e
Loss before tax (5.215) (4,259}
Tnconie sk at the applicable s e [7H3) 15 (EL]] 15
Effect of change i meome tax lemslation 1 B 256 {0}
Change in unrecognised differed 1ax assets 7T (7 Ji (7
Mop-deductble differences [ 144} i 40 L t”
Change i unrecognised detirréd tax asse {528) 11 (39) 1

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Temporary differences between the carmng amounts of assels and habalities for financtal
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes give nise to net deferred tax liability
as at 31 December 2008 and net deferred tax labilities as at 31 December 2017,

Movements i temporary differences duning the vears ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are

presented as follows:

018 3 December Recopnised in Recognized in i1 December
GEL'D00 2017 vquity profit or loss 2018
Property and equipment [ 236) [3K3) R (308)
Losns oo cusiomers (91} - 191 (Y]
Assets held for sale - 45 45
Ohthier liability 18 - (1) 24
(279) (383) 528 (134)
2017 1 January Hecognised in- Hecognized in 31 December
GEL 000 2017 cijuity profit or loss 2017
Froperty and equipment 187} {47 (1 (236)
Loans o customers (§7) - (4 (91
Chbyer hablity ] = B 45 48
1) i47) kL (279}
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Cash and cash equivalents

2018 m7
L S i) CoE L (MM
Cash on hand 5452 3079
Current necounts with Netional Bank of Georgia excluding | 580 510
abligatory reserves o
Nostro accounts with other Banks
Rated BB- 10 BB+ 6,183 10030
Ruted below B+ 25N 163
Total nostro accounts with other banks = 13,073 13,772
Cash equivalents
Term deposi R 220
Total cash and cash cquivalents 20,073 15,973

No cash and cash equivalents are past due, As at 31 December 2018 the Bank allocates cash
equivalents under Stage 1 for the purposes of identifving expected credit loss under IFRS 9
(1 Yanuary 2015: Stage 1). Management estimates that ECL is immaterial at reporting dates.

Amounts due from credit institution

018 2017

GEL 0 GEL000

Obhgntory reserve with Rational Benk of Georgia (NBG) 3183 2293
Total amounts dve from credit institution 1183 2173

In 2015 the credit institutions are required to maintain an interest eaming cash deposit (obligatory
reserve) with the NBG at 5% and a1 25% of the average of funds attracted from customers and non-
resident financial institutions by a credit institution for the appropriate two-week period in GEL
and foreign currencies, respectively.

As at 31 December 2018 the Bank allocates amounts due from credit institution under Stage 1 for

the pumposes of identifving expected credit loss under IFRS 9 (1 January 2018: Stage 1)
Management estimates that ECL is immaterial at reporting dates.

Investment securities

018 iy
GEL D00 GEL i
Ciovernment feeasury bonds | 3,637 1,255
Todal investment securities measured ut amortised cost 13,637 10,255
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
MNominal Mominal
interest rate, interest rate,
Y Muturity Y Maturity
Debr securties wirth the Mingstry of Finance
of Georgin E1-=11238% HM9 2028 B.TT - 1502 JR- 2020

No investment secunties are past due or impaired. As at 31 December 2018 the Bank allocates
investment securities under Stage 1 for the purposes of idenifving expected credit loss under
IFRS 9 (1 January 2018: Stage 1), Management estimates that ECL is immaterial at reporting dates.
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12 Loans to customers

2018 2017
GEL 000 GELOHH)
Lawns to corporate customers
Lawns 1o corporate custinmers g.a10 ) 3807
Total loans to corporate customens 8510 3807
Loans to retail customers
Consumer lending - uncollaterabized 5214 Al
Consunter lending - collaterslized I, 149 2218
Credin cards 1397 111
Silkloan 44601 I4h4
Silkloan Plus 3565 5
Total Loans to retail costomers | I,H'Ql"_n'__ 4,119
Total gross loans (o customers 19,606 7.0134
Laoss allowance (3619} (1.503)
MNet loans to customers 15,987 6,433

Movements in the credit loss allowance of loans to customers measured al amortized cost {or the vear
ended 31 December 2018 are as follows;

Luans to corporate Loans to retail

customers Customers Toral

- GEL*(00 GEL'000  GEL'000

Balance at the beginning of the year 376 1137 [ 503
Adjustment onimtial application of IFRS 9 {160 (238) (398
Restuted balance as at | January 216 ERO 1,105
Mef chanee | 84 1,749 2933
Write-otfs (213 (57T (TN
Becovery e ind 371
Balance ai the end of the vear 195 3,424 1,619

Movements in the loan impairment allowance by classes of loans to customers for the year ended
3] December 2017 are as follows:

L.guny to corporate Laoans to retall
customers customers Taotal
CiEL M GEL i) GEL™000
Balance at the begmning of the vear 455 | 423 | BTH
Met charge | 34 134 273
Write-nfls 213 (435] [A45)
Balance at the end of the vear 376 1,127 1,503

{a) Credit quality of loans to customers

The following table provides information on the credit quality of loans to customers as at
31 December 2015 and 31 December 2017

Ay
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31 December 31 December
kU1E] 27
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total loans Total loans
GEL GEL CEL M GEL W CEL 01
Lonns 1o corporale cuslomers
Lowms wiathout individunl signs of smpairment 7554 - 7.554 JA484
Ruated B2 4007 4.7 -
Rated Caal 2.404 2 44l -
Ruared Caad 587 187 -
Overdue or impalred laans:
< Impaired kan - - G3f U506 E X ]
Total overdue v ompuared loans - - A L Py
Total loans o corporate CUSLHMErs, gross 7554 = 95k 8510 3807
Loss allowamce . iHl . {114} i 195) (R
Total leans v corporate cusiomers TAT3 - Rd2 8115 141
Loans to retail customers
Silkloan
= nol overdue 2 ol - - 2 bl 1285
- overdue bess than 20 davs 174 . | 7K 53
- qiverdue 2 1-n(1 days . F4 T (L
- pverdue maoee than & days - - | 40 1,4 SE)
Total Sitkloan, gross 13K 217 1806 4,461 1,494
Loss allnwance 1Ry N (1047} {13671 (145
Total Silkloan 2,652 T8 S 3,054 1.34%
Silkloan Plus
- mol avendue 1275 - - A2TS 5
- owverdue fess than 340 days 193 - - 193
overdue V60 davs - 103 . 103 -
- overdue 6] -90 days - 44 - wa -
- pverdue more than %) days . 7 a7 -
= Chvertdug Jess than 90 nestroctiuned | - 201 = 201 -
T'otal Silkloan Plus, gross LA6K L 707 3567 £
Livss allowance (450 (155} [324) (1,129 -
Total Silkinan Plus 2018 m 183 1438 5
Retail — callaterized
« i everdue 197 - - 147 241
- ivverdue less than U davs - . . - 214
- overgdue 3160 days . LR . 53 fud
<iverdue G 1-H) days - - - - [
- overdue mowe than O days . 291 291 958

= irverdue less than 90 (restructure ) - R

- EIET 184
- arverdug mawe tham W restructored | : . 274 278 395
Total retall - collaterized, gross 197 38 S 1.14% 218
Loss allowance {1} [55) {129} E i S )
Total retail - collaterized 191 Ly 440 95y 1318
Retail - uncollsterized
- net pverdug 44n - . EEL 227
overdue less than 30 days I - - | -
- overdue more than 4 doys - - ki gl t
= wverdue fess thisn 90 | restructured ) 23 - 23 13
- overdue more thin S0 (restructuned | - - 4 BL __ 33
Total retail - uncollaterized, gross 447 23 53 23 il
Loss allowanse {18] {74 {28] (533 | T
Taial retail - uncollaterized 429 16 25 470 125
Plastic curd plus
- it overdue T - . 7 okl
= overdie less than 30 davs 0T : z ] 14
- owerdue 31-64 days . 44 - AL I
= overdue 5190 days - 52 - 2 -
= arvendue more tham 90 duys = = 428 428 I
Total plastic card plus, gross L 1o 428 1397 11
Lirss nllowanoe . {300 (69 {317) L] 121
Toval plastic card plus 568 2 11 71 1w
Total loans [o retail customers, gross [N 51) Lil6 3163 11097 P
Loss allowance (S} (425) _II{I,IHI;F} (3.415) {1, 123)
Total loans te retail customers £A5% 841 L1123 7672 BRI

Grand total of curryving amount of loass to
custamers 13,31 641 1965 15,987 6,433

3
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Netes to, and forming part of, the fnancial suetements for the veer ended 31 Deeember 20108

* Silkloan is the payday without collateral loan with the maximum amount of 1,200 GEL with
the original matunty of one month and an option to extend for an additional month,

Silkloan Plus s the instalment loan withowt collateral with the maximum amount of 3,000 GEL
and maturity from 12 to 24 months.

Analysis of collateral and other credit enhancements
Loans te corpardate CHSToOmers

Loans 1o corporate customers are subject to individual credit appraisal and impairment testing, The
general creditworthiness of a corporate customer tends to be the most relevant indicator of credit
guality of the loan extended 10 it. However, collateral provides additional security and the Bank
generally requests corporate borrowers to provide it

The following tables provides information on collateral and other credit enhancements securing
loans to corporate customers, net of impairment, by types of collateral;

Fair value of collateral;
for collateral sssessed

A1 December 218

Loans to  Fair value of eollateral:

customers,  for collateral assessed as of loan inception
GEL 000 carrving amount as of reporting date date
Leans withour individual signs of
impuirment
Feal eotate 6,028 - 6, (118
Inventory 1445 | 443
Total logns without individual signs of
impairment 7473 - 7,473
Ohverdie or impaired loans
Renl estate ad2 . 542
Total overdue or impaired loans 842 - B4l
Totul lugns Lo corporaie customers 8315 - 8315
31 December 2007 Fair value of
Loans to Fair value of collateral: collateral: for
customers,  for collateral assessed us colluteral assessed as
GEL'000 carrying amount of reporting date  of loan inception date
Leans without individual signs of
i frm et
Renl extate 2 it . 2,36
Inveniony w2 - T
Movable property [13 - 67
F'otal loans withouot individual signs of
impairment 3371 - 2813
hverdue ar impuived foans
Real estate 56 - i)
Total overdoe or impaired loans St - 56
Total loans to corporate customers 3,427 - 2,RR9

The tables above exclude overcollaterahization,

The Bank has loans, for which the fair value of collateral was assessed at the loan inception date
and 11 was not updated for further changes. For certain loans the fair value of collateral is updated
as at the reporting date. Information on the valuation of collateral is based on when this estimate
was made, 1F any,

For loans secured by multiple types of collateral, all collateral that are relevant for impairment
assessment are disclosed.
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The recoverahility of loans which are neither past due nor impaired primanly depends on the
creditworthiness of borrowers rather than the value of collateral. and the Bank does not necessarily
update the valuation of collateral as at each reporting date.

During the period. there was no change in the Bank’s collateral policies,
Loans to retail customers

The major part of the retail collateralized loans are secured by real estate.
Assers held for sale

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, assets held for sale comprise from repossessed collaeral:

2018 2017
GEL 000 GEL'000

Real estate 4,918 5806
Total repossessed collateral 4918 5,800

In 2018 assels held for sale balances have been written down to fair value less cost to sale of
GEL 1,452 thousand recognised in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
impairment loss on the assets held for sale (2017: GEL 1,683 thousand).

The Bank's policy is to sell these assets as soon as it is practicable.

key assumptions and judgments for estimating loan impairment

Key assumptions used by the Bank in estimation of the expected credit loss on loans to customers
are as follows:

e probability of default (PD);
o loss given default {LGD);
s exposure at default (EAID),

Change in these estimate by 10% increase/decrease could affect the expected credit loss on loans
to customers for 2018 as follows:

o probability of default (PL) - GEL 128 thousand:
o [oss given default (L.GD) — GEL 214 thousand,
e exposure at default (EAD) - GEL 232 thousand.

Significant credit exposures

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Bank has no borrowers or groups of connected horrowers,
whose net loan balances exceed 10% of equity.

L.oan maturities

The maturity of the loan portfolio is presented in Note 20{c){ v}, which shows the remaining period
from the reporting date to the contractual matunty of the loans.

kL
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Revalued asseis

In 2018 management commissioned Baker Tilly Georgia LLC to independently appraise land and
butlding as at 31 December 2018 which, in accordance with the Bank's accounting policy. is
measured at fair value,

The fair value of land and building was determined to be GEL 18,022 thousand and reflects market
prices in recent transactions.

Land and buildings are categorized within level 3 of fair value hiefarchy.

The basis used for the appraisal is the market approach which 1s based on an analysis of the results
of comparable sales of similar land and buildings.

If the land and buildings were measured using the cost model, the carryving amounts would be as
follows;

201K 17

GEL'000 GEL'000
Lot 20,131 200131
Accurnulated deprediation (3860 {5:455)
Mt carrying amount 14,270 14,673

Current accounts and deposits from customers

218 017

GEL'000 GEL'000
Current accounts {052 £.004
Time deposits 2,840 6,559
12,892 15463

As at 3] December 2018 amounts due to customers of GEL 8,728 thousand (68% of total current
accounts and  deposits  from  custemers  balance) were due 1o ten largest customers
(2017: GEL 8.286 thousand [54%)).

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Bank has no eustomers, whose balances exceed 10% of
Ejuity.

Amounts due 1o customers include accounts with the following types of customers:

2018 2017
- GEL'000 GEL'000
Individuals:
- Term deposits 2312 5,593
- Clurrent pecounts 2064 2445
Total due to individuals 4491 8,038
Commercial legal entities:
- Current sertiement accounts T.ER4 459
- Term deposils 517 ol
Total due o commercial legal entitics - 40| 7415
l'otal amounts due (o customers 12,892 15,463
An analysis of customer accounts by economic sector follows:
2018 017
GEL 000 GEL (00
Inclividuals 4,508 K0G8
Trade and service 6,31% 3749
Transportation and communmication 525 aili
Construction 354 |4
Apriculture 17 51
Other Li70 2834
Amounts due to customers 12,892 15,463

41
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Subordinated borrowings

2018 2017

GEL' (00 GEL 000

Silk Road Finange 18C - . QAT
: 9,076

Subordinated borrowings were abtaimed from Silk Road Finance JSC on 28 December 2017, Subordinated
borrowing bears 3% mterest rate and matures on 28 December 2023

Reconcilintion of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

18 7

GEL000 GEL D00

Carrying amount as o | January AL L Ched b
Forgign currency {(gain ) ogs [ B6) |6
Interest expense 358 -
Interest repayment (35K} -
Fepayment of principal #9290 -
Balance at 31 December 2017 - 9074

Share capital and reserves

Issued capital and share premium

As at 31 December 2018, share capital of the Bank comprised 611,464 of authorized fully paid
shares with nominal value GEL 100 each (2017: 300.000 authorized tully paid shares with the
nominal value 100 GEL ¢ach)

The share capital of the Bank was contributed by the shareholders in Georgian Lari and they are
entitled 1o dividends and any capital distribution in Georgian Lari.

Nature and purpose of reserves
Revaluation surplus for property and equipment

The revaluation surplus for property and equipment comprises the cumulative positive revalued
vilue of property and equipment after depreciation transfer to retained earmings, until the assets are
derecognised or imparred.

Dividends

Dividends payable are restricted to the maximum retained earnings of the Bank. which are
determined according to Georgia legmslation,

Contingencies
Litigation
In the ordinary course of business, the Bank is subject to legal actions and complaints. Management

believes thal the ultimate liability, if any, arising from such actions or complaints will not have a
malerial adverse effect on the financial condition or the results of future operations.

Taxation contingencies

The taxation system in Georgia is relatively new and is characterised by frequent changes in
legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions. which are sometimies unclear,
contradictory and subject to varying interpretation. In the event of a breach of tax legislation. no
liabilities for additional taxes, fines or penalties may be imposed by the tax authorities after three
years have passed since the end of the year in which the breach oceurred,
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These circumstances may create tax risks in Georgia that are more significant than in other
countries. Management believes that it has provided adequately lor tax habilities based on 1ts
interpretations of applicable Georgian tax legislation, official pronouncements and count decisions.
However, the interpretations of the relevant authorities could differ and the effect on these financial
statements, if the authonties were successful in enforcing their interpretations, could be sigmificant.

Related party transactions

Control relationships

The Bank’s parent Company is Silk Road Finance JSC (Thilisi, Georgia), which owns 99,99 % of
the share capital. No publicly available financial statements are produced by the Bank’s parent
companies.

The Bank's ultimate controlling party is Georgian businessman Giorgn Ramishvili
Related party transactions

Total remuneration included in personnel expenses for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017
is as follows:

2018 2017
GEL 000 GEL 000
Shor-term emplovee benefits 374 3ol

The outstanding balances and average effective imterest rates as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 for
refated party tansactions are shown below:

2018 Average effective 20017 Average effecrive
GEL" (0 interest rate, %o GEL'(00 imterest rate, %o

Statement of financial position

Louns isswed net carryving amount

Fellow subsidisry 6,337 10 %% I.018 k2%
Close family members of

management and wltimale

controlling party | 142 i2% [ 471 12%
Koy munagement personmel 4 1 8%, 23 205
Current accounts and deposits

from customers

Fellow subsidiary 3985 (LB 1368 11"
Close family members of

managenment and wliimate

comtred ling party 63 - 1.401 -
koy management personnel Sl LIRS I3 (0245
Swohordinated debt

Parent - - Q076 se5

Loans issued to related paries are secured with the collateral with the loan to value ratio of less
than 100%, Impairment allowance as at 31 December 200 8 and 31 December 2017 on loans issued
to related parties is immaterial.

Amounts included in profit or loss in relation to transactions with related parties for the year ended
31 December are as follows:

Mil8 2007
GELODO GEL (i

Profit or loss
[nterest ingome 46 ilo
Interest expense A 30

43



19

20
{a)

JSC Sk Road Bank
Nisties for, coned forming peet of, the financial staremens for the vear ended 31 Degembyy 2018

Fair values of financial instruments

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

«  Level 1: quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.

«  Level 2: inputs other than quotes prices included within Level 1 that are ohservable either
directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (1.e., derived from prices). This category includes
instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments;
quoted prices for similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other
valuation technigues where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
market data.

«  Level 3 inputs that arc unobservable. This category includes all instruments where the
valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unohservable inputs
have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that
are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments where stgnificant unobservable
adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

The estimated fair values of all financial instruments as at 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017 approximate their carrying amounts.

* The estimates of fair value are intended to approximate the price that would be received to sell an

asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants & the
measurement date. However given the uncertainties and the use of subjective judgment, the fair
value should not be interpreted as being realisable in an immediate sale of the assets or transter of
liabilites,

Risk management
Corporate governance, internal control policies and procedures

The Bank is required to manage financial risks that arise as a consequence ol its operations to deliver
its policy objectives as well as in the course of managing the Bank’s statement of financial position.
These risks primarily include credit risk. liquidity risk and funding management, market risk.
prepayment risk and operational nsk.

Risk is inherent in the Bank's activities but it is managed through a process of ongoing
identification. measurement and monitoring. subject to risk limits and other controls. This process
of risk management is critical to the Bank’s continuing profitability and each individual within the
Bank is accountable for the risk exposures relating to hus or her responsibilities.

Ihe independent risk control process does not include business risks such as changes in the
environment. technology and industry. They are monitored through the Bank's strategic planning
process.

Risk management structure

The Supervisory Board is ultimately responsible for identifying and controlling risks; however,
there are separate independent bodies responsible for managing and mamtoring risks. Currently risk
is monitored by the following units with the Management Board -

- credit risk is managed by the Credit Risk Committees:

. liguidity risk s managed by ALCU,

. market risk 1s managed by ALCO:

. Operational risk is managed by the Operational Risk Management Departiment.

Risk mitigation
The Bank actively uses collateral to reduce its credil risks,
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Operational risk

Operational risk 1s the risk of loss arising from systems failure. human error. fraud or external
events. When controls fail to perform. operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal
or regulatory mmplications, or lead to financial loss. The Bank cannot expect to eliminate all
operational risks, but through a control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential
risks, the Bank is able to manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access,
authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, including the
use of internal audit.

Market risk

Market risk 1s the nisk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fuctuate
due 1o changes in market variables such as interest rates. foreign exchanges, and equity prices.
Except for the concentratons within foreign currency and prepavment risks, the Bank has no
significant concentration of market

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk s the risk that the fair value or future cash Tows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market mnterest rates. The Group is exposed 1o the effects of
Auctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on its financial position and cash flows
Interest marging may increase as a result of such changes, but may also reduce or create fosses in
the event that unexpected movements peeur,

Interest rate pap analysiy

Interest rate risk is managed principally through monitoring interest rate gaps. A summary of the
interest pap position for major financial mstruments 15 as follows:

2018 27
Within one  More than Within one  More than
year One Vear Tatal vear UNE YEAr Tl

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 15,021 - 15021 12504 . [ 2,50
Amoutits due o cnadit

imatiutions |83 . 2,183 2273 - 1273
Lavans iy customaers #2337 7.754 15987 2 b 3. 704 f,433
[rvestment securities: 1.4492 12,143 13,637 1707 2548 10,2535
Cther financral assers R ] . 344 347 | A4y
Total 27,21 19,599 47,176 25,8H) 6313 aroa
Financial linhilities
Subordinated dety - - . (40076 {070
Aot due 1wy custoers (s T {2, 075) {12,892 [ [4R02) {4, 6l {15.4602)
Other financial lahilites (371} - (371 (3711 - (371)
Total (LL.188) (2.075%) (13.263) (11.173) i13,736) {24,909)
MNet exposare 16,089 17,824 331,913 14,717 {7,423) T7.294

Average effective interest rates

The table below displays average effective interest rates for interest-bearing assets and liahilities as
at 31 December 2015 and 2017, These interest rates are an approximation of the vields 10 maturity
of these assets and Liabilities,

L
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2018 w7
Averape effective interest rate, % Averapge effective interest rate, %o
Oither Other

GEL LsD currencies GEL LsD currencies
Interest beanng nssets
cash and cash equivalents %% 1 1% T | %% B
Lokima 0 cusioimers 4% 12% - 39% 205
Investment securities Y% - 13% -
Imterest heaning fiabiines
Current accounts and
deposits from customers 5:5% 5% | T 4% 1%
Subordhmated bomowings - - b -

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The management of interest rate nsk, hased on an interest rate gap analysis. 15 supplemented by
monitoring the sensitivity of finaneial assets and liabilities, An analysis of the sensitivity of net
profit or loss and equity (net of taxes) to changes in interest rates (repricing risk), hased on a
simplified scenaria of a 100 basis paint (hp) symmetnical fall or rise m all yield curves and positions
of interest-bearing assets and liabilities existing as at 31 December 2018 and 2017, is as tollows:

&

[ 1) bp paratlel fall
[{H) bpy parallel rise

Currency risk

2018
GEL 1)
(288)

£

2018
GEL 000

The Bank has assets and labilines denominated in several foreign currencies,

{62
62

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
Tuctuate because of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Although the Bank hedges 15
exposure to currency risk, such activities do not qualify as hedging relationships mn accordance with

IFRS.

The following table shows the foreign currency exposure structure of financial assets and hiabilities

as at 31 December 2018;

ASKETS

Cash and cush equivilents

Amounts due from credis institutions
Loans (o ¢ustomers

Other financial assets

Toral assets

LIABILITIES

Current accounts gnid deposits from cusiomers
Other Ginancial Habilites

Total liahilities

Effect of foreign currency forward contract®

MNet position

L'SD E1R Total
GEL 00 GEL 00 GEL DM
9,503 2,090 |1,593
5.427 - 5427
1.451 702 2.183
257 - 257
16,668 2,792 19 461
[, 5601} {(2.778) (9.33%)

{15 - il S,HL
(6,710} (2,778} (9, 48K)
{9,900} a (0,90
58 14 72
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The following table shows the foreign currency exposure structure of financial assets and liabihites
as at 31 December 2017:

LsD ELR Total

GEL'0M  GEL'000  GELDO{
ASSETS
Cash and cash eguivalents 11.43] Qe 12,427
Loans 1o cusiomers LTS - 3178
Arounts dise from credit instimunens 2,164 44 2313
Ether fimancial assels 289 - RO
Total assety 17,062 1,145 18,207
LIABILITIES
Current accounts and deposits from customers (9,792} 11.244) (110363
Subordmated borrowings (9073 - (9073
Eiher financial Tinhilines (65} - (631
Total linbilities (18,030) (1,244)  (20,174)
Effect of foreign currency forward contract® 1,814 - 1,814
Net position 54 (99) (45)

* The table below shows the fair values of foreign currency forward contract recorded in other
assets (31 December 2017 other liabihities) together with their notional amounts. The notional
amount, recorded gross. is the amount of a financial instrument’s underlying asset or lizbility,
reference rate and s the hasis upon which changes i the value of financial instruments are
measured, The notional amounts indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at the vear end and
are not indicative of the credit risk.

31 December 2018 3 December 2017
MNotional Motional
GEL i amount Fair value amount Fair value
Foreign currency forward contract
Sell USD bay GEI R 02 - -
Buy USD sell GEL - . .84 5

The followimng significant exchange rates have been applied dunng the vear:

in GEL Avernge rale _Reporting date spot rate
018 2017 018 7

LSD | 25345 25086 20T 2,502

ELI | A09E3 2R3 340701 B IE

A weakemng of the GEL. as indicated below, aganst the following currencies at 31 December 2018
and 2017, would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below.
This analysis is on a nei-nf-tax basis, and 1s bascd on foreign currency exchange rate variances that
the Bank considered 1o be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting penod. The analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remam constant,

2008 2017
GEL 000 GEL 000
1% appreciation of LSD agamst GEL 5] 5
[ apprecistion of EUR against GEL | (%)

A strengthening of the GEL against the above currencies at 31 December 2018 and 2017 would
have had the equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the
basis that all other varables remained constant.

Credir risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Bank will incur a loss because its customers, clients or counterparties
failed 10 discharge their contractual obligations. Exposure to credit nisk arises as a result of the
Bank's lending and other transactions with counterparties giving rise to financial assets.

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk
accepted in refation to one borrower, or groups of borrowers.
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The Bank established 1 level of credit committee which is responsible for approving ¢redit limits
for individual borrowers.

Loan applications originated by the relevant client relationship managers are passed on to the
relevant credit committee tor approval of credit limit, Exposure to credit risk is also managed, in
part, by obtaining collateral and corporate and personal guaraniees.

Due to relatively small size of the Bank's operations during the vear credit risk exposure is
monitored by the Management Board.

The Bank continuously moenitors the performance of individual credit exposures and regularly
reassesses the creditworthiness of its customers. The review 15 based on the customer’ s most recent
financial statements and other mformation submitted by the borrower, or otherwise obtained by the
Bank.

The maximum exposure to credit risk from financial assets at the reporting date 15 as follows:

2018 T
GELW000 GEL (N
ASSETS
Cash and cash eguivalents 5,021 | 2,894
Ameunts due from credil instmbions 2183 2273
Loans 1o Customers | 5,987 6433
[fivestnent securitics [ 3637 10,253
(her Aouneial assels 344 s
Total maximum exposure 47,176 32,203

For the analysis of collateral held against loans to customers and concentration of credil risk in
respect of loans to customers, see Note 12

Liguidirty risk

Liquidity risk and funding management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall
due under normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, the Bank's Management manages
assets with liquidity in mind, and monitors future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. This

incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high grade collateral
which could be used to secure additional funding if required.

The Bank maintains a portfolio of state securities that can be pledged to the NBG to obtain financing
in the event of demand.

I'he hquidity position is assessed and managed by the Bank based on certain liquidity ratio
established by National Bank of Georgia. The NBG requires banks to maintain liquidity ratio of
more than 30%. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017 the ratio was as follows:

2018 2017

LK “Averpge Liguidine Batie” (average monthly volume of liguid assets
averdge monthly vohune ot lizkilities) |53, 24% 108.215%

The following tables show the undiscounted cash flows on financial assets, liabilities on the basis
of their earliest possible contractual maturity. The total gross inflow and outflow disclosed in the
tables is the contractual. undiscounted cash flow on the financial assets, hability.
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The maturity analvsis for financial assets and liabilities as at 3] December 2018 is as follows:

Total
gross
On demand More amount
and less than Tw3  3mwi2 ls than influw Carrving
CGEL 1 month months  months  vears 5 vears {outflow) amount
Cash and cash eguivalents 15021 s = z . 15021 15,021
Amounts due from credit instiiulioRs 2,183 - - - - ) 2.183
Investment seeumtics 489 [ s a8 AT 830 26003 13,637
Lixins 0 customers 8,024 GoG 3003 RS 4,941 24 809 15987
Unhier financial asset 345 - - s = 348 248
Total financial assels 26,965 1.955 3721 16,272 14351 63,264 47,176
Current accounts &nd deposits from
CustoITIeTs AR (486} {24983 () . (12978)  (12.892)
Other financial lahilities 1371 - - - - (3711 (371
Total financial liabilities (11.975) (486) (248) (6l - (13349 (13,261)
Net liquidity gup on recognised
financinl assets and liabilities 14,990 1,469 3473 15632 14331 49,915 33913

The maturity analysis for financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2017 is as follows:

" Total
Uross

O demand More amaouni

and lessthan lmw 3wl lws than inflow Carrying
CE L | month 3 months months  yvears 5 years  (outflow) amount
Cash and cosh equivalems 12,8494 - . - - 12594 [ 2,854
Amownts due fromm credst insbiutions 2273 - - - - 2273 2,273
Lians e customers o, 139 i Q87 2,885 dhih 10.934 6433
[nvestment securitics 131 2 4607 253 %30 11,253 13,255
Cther financal asset 44 - - - - "--H 348
Total Ninancial assets 29,405 149 1.394 5138 Ldlo a7.702 32,203
Amounts due w0 eredit institutions (10906 (3280) (1.074) {308} - (15,568) (I5463)
Subordinated horrowings - - - (LT - (117700 (076)
Other financial labilities (371 L - % * 271 3T
Total financial liabilities (11.27T) {3,280} (1074} (12.078) - {27,709)  (24,910)
et liguidity gap on recognised
financial assets and linbilities 18,128 (2,931) 320 (a4} 1416 9,993 7.293

Capital adequacy

According to the NBG regulations about capital adequacy (Decree N1OO/04) on 18 December 2017 the
mimmum capital regquirement ratios have been revised, As at 31 December 2018 Common Equity Tier
| Capital (CET I), Tier I Capital (Tier 1) and Total Capital ratios 1s set at 4.50%. 6.00% and #.00%.
respectively, Capital Conservation and Countercyelical buffers were set at 2.50% and (%, respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank had to maintam the currency induced credit risk (CICR) buffer
of 0.55% (2017; 0.27%), Risk buffer for credit portfolio concentration of 4.18% (2017: nil) and net
GRAPE bufler of 14.4% (20017 nil). All the rest Pillar Il buffers were to preserve at nil percent
(201 7: nil). Under total Basel Ll requirements the Bank was required 1o maintain @ minimum
regulatory capital ratio, Common Equity Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio and Tier | capital adequacy
ratio of 29.63%, 11.09% and 12.63%, respectively (2017 10.77%, 7.15% and 8.71%. respectively).
The Bank was in compliance with these capital adequacy ratios as at 31 December 2018 and as at
31 December 2017.

49



JSC Sitk Road Bank
Notes m, gnd formung part of . the finseciol statements [0 the vear ended 31 Decenidier 2008

The calculation of the capital adequacy ratios in accordance with the NBG accounting rules and
capital adequacy Basel 1l framework for 31 December 201 7 and 31 December 2015:

GEL"MM) 2018 217

Tier | capitil 30,381 22237
Supplementary capital 24 9,132
Total regulatory capital 50,615 31,369
Risk weighted assets 55931 46,023
Regulutory capital ratie W51 o8 16%
Commen Equity Tier | capital adegquacy rato !

tier | capitaladeiguacy o QLY 48.32%

Subsequent events

_ Irakli Managadze has been appointed as a chairman of Bank’s Supervisory Board at 28" of
February, 2019

- Fli Enoch has been appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Bank at 1" of April, 2019,
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